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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
TO THE MEMBERS OF ARB APEX BANK LIMITED
The directors present their report together with the audited financial statements of the ARB Apex Bank
Ltd for the year ended 31 December 2013.
Statement of Directors’ Responsibility
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements for each financial year,
which gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank. In preparing the financial statements,
the directors have selected suitable accounting policies, applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and have followed International Financial Reporting
Standards and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1963 (Act 179).
The directors are responsible for ensuring that the Bank keeps proper accounting records that disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position, the financial performance and cash flows
of the Bank. The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of accounting fraud.
Nature of Business
The ARB Apex Bank Limited is a Public Limited Liability Company incorporated under the Companies
Act 1963 (Act 179) and owned by the Rural and Community Banks in Ghana. It has been licensed by the
Bank of Ghana, through the ARB Apex Bank Ltd Regulation 2006 (LI1825), to provide support services
to the Rural and Community Banks (RCBs).
Results of operations
The Bank made a total comprehensive income of GH¢8,669,851 as compared toGH¢7,190902 in 2012
in the attached financial statements. The bank is in its eleventh year of operations.
Auditors
The auditors, EY (Ernst & Young), Chartered Accountants, having expressed their willingness, continue
in office pursuant to Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 1963 (Act 179).
Signed on behalf of the Board by:

Director
Date: 26th March, 2014

Director
Date: 26th March, 2014
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Notice of Annual
General Meeting of

The ARB Apex Bank Limited
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the 12th Annual General Meeting of the ARB Apex Bank Limited will
be held on Saturday, 26th April 2014 at 10:00 am at the Conference Room of the ARB Apex Bank Limited,
South Ridge, Accra to transact the following business:
1.

To receive the Chairman’s statement and the Managing Director’s report for the year ended 31 December
2013.

2.

To consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2013
together with the reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

3.

To authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors.

4.

To declare dividend.

5.

To fix the remuneration of the Directors.

6.

Any Other Business.
• In accordance with Regulation 24(2) of the Bank’s Regulations, each Rural/Community Bank (RCB)
shall be represented by its Chairman or a member of the Board with a duly sealed proxy form.
• A copy of the instrument appointing the proxy is herewith attached and for it to be valid for the
purpose of the meeting, it should be completed and deposited at the Head Office of the ARB Apex
Bank Limited No. 5, 9th Road, Gamel Abdul Nasser Avenue, South Ridge, Accra not later than
48 hours prior to the meeting.

DATED THIS 7TH DAY OF MARCH 2014
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
(Signed)
CURTIS W. BRANTUO
COMPANY SECRETARY
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Chairman’s Report

D

ear Shareholders, On behalf
of the Board of Directors, I
warmly welcome you to the
twelfth Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of the
ARB Apex Bank Limited. I am highly
delighted to present to you a report on the
performance of our Bank for the year ended
31st December, 2013.

Generally, developments in interest rates on the
money market for the year under review were mixed
but mostly showed a downward trend on year-on-year
basis. The Bank of Ghana Policy Rate was kept at 16.0
per cent during the year but rates on the money
market instruments however reacted in a mixed
manner. In the Treasury bill market, the 91-day and
182 day bills declined from 21.7 per cent and 20.5 per
cent to 18 per cent and 17.5 per cent respectively.

THE GLOBAL ECONOMY
Global economic growth remains generally subdued
and varied across regions. Although some factors
continue to restrain growth in the advanced
economies, some of them have experienced moderate
growth in recent times. The US, for instance, recorded
a real GDP growth of 1.9 per cent in 2013 down
from 2.8 per cent in 2012.

The Ghana cedi continued to depreciate against its
major trading currencies. Although foreign exchange
inflows from traditional sources remained low, inflows
from other sources like bonds purchases (euro bond,
3-year bond, 5-year bond) however helped to ease
demand pressures on the market during the year 2013.

Growth in emerging market economies appears to
have lost some momentum, even though it would
continue to serve as the engine for global growth in
the medium term.
THE GHANAIAN ECONOMY

THE RURAL BANKING INDUSTRY

In the domestic economy, inflationary and fiscal
pressures continued to be a source of concern. The
pace of economic growth over the year moderated as
inflation edged up to 13.5 per cent at the end of
December 2013 from 8.8 per cent in 2012. This was
partly driven by the impact of the increase in
transportation costs after the petroleum price
adjustments.

The ARB Apex Bank and the Rural and Community
Banks (RCBs) continue to face stiff competition from
the universal banks and the ubiquitous microfinance
institutions springing up in every corner of the
country. Some RCBs continue to face the problem of
low capitalization and operational inefficiencies which
are affecting their ability to make profits.

The fiscal outturns of both revenue and expenditure
were below their respective targets for the third
quarter of 2013. Government budgetary operations
in the third quarter of 2013 resulted in an overall fiscal
deficit of GH¢3,656.7 million (4.2% of GDP) against
a target deficit of GH¢2,369.1 million (2.7% of
GDP).

The Bank of Ghana has raised the minimum capital
requirement of RCBs from GH¢150,000 to
GH¢300,000 which most RCBs are struggling to
meet.

7

ARB Apex Bank Annual Report 2013

THE BANK’S PERFORMANCE

DIVIDEND

Dear Shareholders, ladies and gentlemen, it gives me
great pleasure in announcing to you that in spite of
the economic challenges, stiff competition in the
banking industry and decreasing interest rates, our
Bank achieved a 20.8% increase in profit before tax
amounting to GH¢8.7 million, over the 2012 profit
of GH¢7.2 million.
The Bank also chalked significant successes in the
following areas:

Distinguished shareholders, the Board of Directors,
in line with the Bank’s dividend policy, is proposing a
dividend of GH¢0.1714 (2012: GH¢0.1436) per
share. This would amount to GH¢1.7 million which
represents 20 per cent of profit before tax for the year
2013. The basic earnings per share for 2013 was
GH¢0.86 (GH¢0.72 in 2012).

•

Total Assets grew from GH¢183.2 million in
2012 to GH¢217.9 million in 2013, an increase
of 18.9 per cent.

•

Total Deposits increased from GH¢134.7
million in 2012 to GH¢153.4 million in 2013,
representing a growth of 13.9 per cent.

The ARB Apex Bank remains alive to its corporate
social responsibility by sponsoring educational, health
and other social programmes. In 2013, the Bank paid
out GH¢90,000.00 (2012: GH¢50,130.00) toward its
corporate social responsibility programmes.

•

Shareholders’ Funds were GH¢32.8 million in
2013 as compared with GH¢25.8 million
recorded in 2012, an increase of 27.1 per cent.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

SUPPORT TO THE ASSOCIATION OF
RURAL BANKS (ARB)
The Bank donated a cross-country vehicle valued at
GH¢203,793 to the ARB to support their operations.

The Board and management remain committed to
working hard towards creating value for the
shareholders of our Bank.

OUTLOOK
We recognise the economic challenges that the
domestic economy presents to our business in 2014
including the depreciation of the cedi. This may have
an adverse impact on the profitability of our RCBs
since they incur a lot of dollar-denominated recurrent
costs on the use of the data centre.
The Bank of Ghana recently increased the policy rate
by 200 basis points to 18.0 per cent. This would make
borrowing more expensive to our customers if we are
to maintain our spreads.

STRATEGIC FOCUS
As you are aware, the Board approved a new Strategic
Plan for the period 2014 to 2018, which would focus
on improving the ICT infrastructure to stimulate
efficiency and increase the satisfaction of RCBs and
their customers.
Distinguished Shareholders, we have upgraded the
existing infrastructure of the data centre by acquiring
new storage devices with higher capacity, among other
upgrades. I am happy to announce that the upgrade
has improved access and brought about increased
stability and availability of the ICT infrastructure for
the comfort of RCBs and their clients.

In spite of the above, we hope to adopt more creative
ways to assuage the effect on our stakeholders whilst
we improve shareholder value.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
I wish to thank my colleague Board members for their
continued cooperation and support, the management
and staff of the bank for their hard work and our
external auditors for their unrelenting dedication to
our course.

To further enhance the ICT infrastructure for multichannel delivery, the Board has recently approved an
amount of US$1.4 million in addition to the US$4
million approved last year.
Arrangements to contract a US$10 million loan for
the three priority projects of the Bank; namely the
construction of a rural banking training school at
Nsoatre in the Brong Ahafo Region, the Tantra Hill
Data Centre and the construction of two additional
floors for the Head Office building; are on-going. At
the appropriate time, the Board would revert to
shareholders in line with the decision reached at the
last AGM.

My greatest appreciation goes to you, our cherished
shareholders, for standing by us all the time.
Finally, I also wish to express my gratitude to our
customers for their loyal business all these years.
Thank you for your attention.
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The Managing
Director’s Report

D

istinguished shareholders, I
am highly pleased to have
another opportunity to
present to you the Bank’s
operational activities and
performance over the last
year. I can confidently report that your Bank
continues to deliver on its mandate of supporting
the operations of the Rural and Community Banks
(RCBs) whilst managing to post strong results.
The year 2013, without doubt, was a difficult year
for the ARB Apex Bank Limited which was a
reflection of the Ghanaian economic environment.
The falling value of the cedi, rising inflation and
interest rate uncertainties were some of the
challenges faced in the year under review.

guaranteeing all their payment instruments
continued in the year under review. The volume
and value of cheques handled (received and
delivered) in 2013 were 590,080 and GH¢3,092
million respectively.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Your Bank’s financial position strengthened further
in 2013 as it recorded a net profit of GH¢8.7million
for the year ended 31st December, 2013 as against
GH¢7.2 million in 2012, representing an increase of
20.8%. Total assets of your Bank increased by 18.9%
growing from GH¢183.2 million in 2012 to
GH¢217.9 million in 2013 while shareholders’ funds
grew from GH¢25.8 million in 2012 to GH¢32.8
million in 2013.

The ACH allows the secured interchange of
electronic payments (debit and credit) for same-day
settlement between banks.
ACH items handled (received and delivered) grew
significantly from 29,030 with value of GH¢49.7
million the previous year to 153,064 with a value of
GH¢132 million in 2013.

Although our targets for deposits and investment
levels were not achieved, our relentless cost-cutting
efforts and cost-sharing arrangements delivered the
positive movement in profit.

e-ZWICH
Since the e-zwich operations commenced in April,
2008 the RCBs have not been able to participate fully
due to numerous challenges. Owing to constraints
with the software, RCBs could not receive individual
reports, manage deposits of e-zwich clients, acquire
retail merchants, make transfer into traditional bank
account or process split salary payments. To facilitate
the participation of RCBs, the ARB Apex Bank had
to consolidate and keep all e-zwich system accounts
of the RCBs in the books of the Bank.

Overall, the Bank achieved a remarkable measure of
success in almost all the key indicators in the year
2013.
CHEQUE CLEARING, CHEQUE
CODELINE CLEARING (CCC) AND
AUTOMATED CLEARING HOUSE (ACH)
Dear shareholders, our role of representing all RCBs
at the on-line Bankers Clearing House and also
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Western Union Money Transfer (WUMT)

The e-zwich software upgrade is ready to be
implemented and RCBs have been informed to
create the necessary e-zwich accounts in their books.

The Bank continues to make significant strides in
the Western Union Money Transfer business as we
grew our pay points to 597 from 545 locations in
2012. We participated in a number of group media
campaigns together with other WU partner banks
and institutions to increase public awareness and to
accelerate the growth of the business. In 2013,
254,130 (2012 – 230,581) WUMT transactions
valued at GH¢150.5 million (2012 –GH¢121.1
million) were handled.

COMPUTERISATION OF RCBs
The ICT infrastructure has been stabilized and
availability improved. Currently, there are 137 RCBs
with about 655 sites live on the T24 eMerge banking
software. We still have a few banks that are yet to
connect to the eMerge and others running
parallel.We want to use this platform to invite such
RCBs to migrate onto the T24 software to be able
to participate in all products linked to the T24
banking software.

On the whole, we are now delivering about 13% of
WUMT business in Ghana.
SINKING FUND

We continue to invest in the ICT infrastructure in
line with our policy to bear all capital expenditure
and recover only the recurrent costs from RCBs.

At the 2011 AGM, shareholders approved the
establishment of a sinking fund for the acquisition
of ICT equipment for the data center. This was with
the idea that we could establish the running of the
data center as a separate entity from the Apex Bank
and be able to incorporate, in the books of this
entity, all other assets acquired for the data center
under the MiDA project.However, following
consultations with our external auditors and tax
authorities on the implementation of the sinking
fund, management has decided to put the idea on
hold.

SPECIE SERVICES
We continue to stock cash in our vaults across the
country in order to shorten the time RCBs wait to
be served. We have improved turnaround time for
RCBs and eliminated the queues that were common
features on our premises.
The Bank continues to deliver specie to the few
RCBs that do not have their own bullion vans on
request. The Bank also provide loans for RCBs to
acquire their own pick-up bullion vans for specie and
other purposes.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
In line with our strategy, we would continue to build
a Bank that harnesses internal efficiencies to reduce
service delivery costs and improve customer
satisfaction. The new strategy of the Bank is to
improve the ICT platform to enable RCBs sustain
their current businesses and attract new businesses,
through timely and cost effective delivery of
products and services needed by the valued clients.
Some of the strategies are:

REMITTANCE BUSINESS
Apex Link Product
The migration of the Apex Link onto the i-Trans II
platform has introduced efficiency into its operation
as reimbursements are made on same-day basis. The
product experienced tremendous growth in the year
under review as patronage grew from 589,164 valued
at GH¢375.1 million in 2012 to 721,571 valued at
GH¢523.3 million in 2013.

•
•

The third version of i-Trans, which is expected to
be released soon, would see the extension of the
product platform to other financial institutions
across the country.

•
•
•
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Make RCBs multi-channel service providers.
Arrange short and long term funds for onlending to their clients.
Enhance accountability and transparency of
business processes.
Enhance risk management practices in the
Bank and RCBs.
Increase media exposure for Apex/RCB
products and services.
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would be expected to promptly respond through
new and improved services and products. Our Bank
would not relent in finding innovative ways to tackle
these challenges and improve service and product
offering to our valued customers.
Activities under the new Strategic Plan 2014-2018
have begun in earnest as we aim to change the
operational efficiency of the ARB Apex Bank and
the RCBs at large.

The rolling out of the ARC mobile, a technology
which would allow customers of RCBs to have
transaction alerts, automate susu fieldwork and do
mobile money transfers has started with some pilot
RCBs. These, we believe, will not only provide
commission streams for the RCBs but also bring
about customer satisfaction.
STAFF
We continue to make substantial investment in staff
training and development. In line with our strategy
to grow leaders from within the Bank; our recent
training programmes have been focused on practical
and work related issues, and the purposeful rotation
of staff in order to increase their versatility and
productivity.
The staff strength of the Bank as at the end of the
year stood at 159 as against 155 in 2012.

CONCLUSION
I wish to express my gratitude to the Board for their
support and dedication to their mandate, our valued
shareholders for the various roles you have played
in bringing the Bank this far. I want to congratulate
my management team and the staff of the Bank for
their hard work and commitment to duty. To our
esteemed customers, I thank you for allowing us to
continue to serve you.

OUTLOOK FOR 2014

Finally, may I use this opportunity to thank God for
sustaining us all these years and for the years ahead.

We look forward to a promising but challenging year
ahead.
The banking landscape is expected to change with
respect to regulations, technology, competition,
governance and customer expectations. Banks

Thank you.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ARB APEX BANK LIMITED
statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

Report on the financial statements
We have audited the accompanying financial
statements of the ARB Apex Bank Limited, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2013, the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes and the directors’ report, as
set out on pages 1-2 and 5-49.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

Opinion
The Bank’s directors are responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and in the manner required by
the Banking Act, 2004 (Act 673) as amended by the
Banking (Amendment) Act 2007 (Act 738) and the
Companies Act, 1963, (Act 179) and for such internal
controls as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of ARB
Apex Bank Limited as at 31 December 2013 and of
its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner
required by the Companies Act, 1963 (Act 179) and
the Banking Act 2004 (Act 673) as amended by the
Banking (Amendment) Act, 2007 (Act 738).
Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements

Auditors’ responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

The Companies Act 1963, (Act 179) requires that in
carrying out our audit we consider and report on the
following matters. We confirm that:
i.

We have obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit;

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial

ii.

In our opinion, proper books of account have
been kept by the company, so far as appears
from our examination of those books and
proper returns adequate for the purposes of
our audit have been received from branches not
visited by us; and

iii.

The balance sheet (statement of financial
position) and the profit and loss account
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ARB APEX BANK LIMITED
(income statement section of the statement of
comprehensive income) of the company are in
agreement with the books of account.

iv.

the bank has generally complied with the
provisions in the Banking Act 2004 (Act 673)
and the Banking (Amendment) Act 2007 (Act
738).

The Banking Act 2004 (Act 673), Section 78 (2),
requires that we state certain matters in our report.
We hereby state that;
i.

The accounts give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the bank and its results for
the period under review;

ii.

We were able to obtain all the information and
explanation required for the efficient
performance of our duties as auditors;

iii.

the banks' transactions are within its powers;
and

Signed by Pamela Des Bordes (ICAG\P\1329)
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young
(ICAG/F/2014/126)
Chartered Accountants
Accra, Ghana
Date: 26th March, 2014
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Financial
Statements
S
tatements

31ST DECEMBER 2013
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ARB
APEX BANK LIMITED
STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
2013

Notes

27,677,784
(4,277,653)

2 012
GH¢
21,466,318
(3,554,371)

Net interest income

23,400,131

17,911,947

Fees and commission income
Fees and commission expense

5,471,680
(1,037,164)

4,035,028
(288,146)

Interest and similar Income
Interest and similar expense

3
4

Net fee and commission income
Other operating income

5
6

4,434,516
5,303,953

3,746,882
4,543,471

Total operating income
Impairment (loss)/reversal

7

33,138,600
(173,271)

26,202,300
140,493

Net operating Income
Personnel expenses
Depreciation
Other operating expenses

8
17
9

32,965,329
(16,609,181)
(1,098,267)
(6,588,030)

26,342,793
(12,974,514)
(985,233)
(5,192,144)

Profit before tax
Tax

10

8,669,851
-

7,190,902
-

Profit for the year

8,669,851

7,190,902

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:
(Loss)/gain on post-retirement medical benefits
(net of tax)

(218,580)

13,054

Total comprehensive income

8,451,271

7,203,956

Total Comprehensive income attributable
toowners of the Bank

8.669,851

7,190,902

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

11

0.86

0.72

Diluted earnings per share

11

0.86

0.72

The attached notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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APEX BANK LIMITED
ARB
STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL

POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER
2013
STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

Assets

Notes

2013

2012

GH¢

GH¢

Cash and balances with Central Bank

12

24,832,690

24,071,889

Cash due from banks
Loans and advances to customers
Financial Instruments – Held to maturity
Other assets
Deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment
Assets held for sale

13
14
15
16
10a
17
18

67,680,319
40,199,804
60,286,940
10,150,748
19,385
14,708,694
66,269

69,798,236
12,191,352
62,582,418
7,534,082
6,915,634
66,269

217,944,849

183,159,880

153,432,841
28,151,546
2,918,490
591,160

134,692,208
18,664,491
2,992,863
999,082
4,351

185,094,037

157,352,995

8,934,340
9,652,205
327,107
(205,526)
14,142,686

8,910,645
7,484,742
48,561
13,054
9,349,883

32,850,812

25,806,885

217,944,849

183,159,880

Total assets
Total liabilities and equity
Liabilities
Due to customers
Other liabilities
Government grant
Interest payable and unearned discount
Deferred tax liabilities

19
20
21
22

Total liabilities
Equity
Issued capital
Statutory reserves
Regulatory credit risk reserves
Other reserves
Retained earnings

27
28
29

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

_____________________________
Director

______________________________
Director

Date 26th March, 2014

Date 26th March, 2014

The attached notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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-

Total comprehensive income

Dividend paid

Transfer to regulatory reserves
Transfer to Regulatory Risk reserve

17

66,641
-

40,231
8,910,645

The attached notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.

-

(66,641)

-

-

-

-

-

Treasury
shares
GH¢
-

-

8,870,414

Balance as of 1 January 2012

Profit for the year
Actuarial gain
Total comprehensive income
Dividend paid
Reversal from regulatory credit risk
reserve
Transfer to Statutory reserve
Cancellation of shares
Shares Issued
Balance as of 31 December 2012

8,934,340

Balance as of 31 December 2013

23,695

-

Actuarial loss

Shares Issued

-

Profit for the year

Balance as of 1 January 2013

Stated
capital
GH¢
8,910,645

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR
THE
YEAR
ENDED
FOR THE
YEAR
ENDED
31 DECEMBER
201331

6

531,850
(3,595,451)
(66,641)
9,349,883

7,190,902
7,190,902
(779,442)

6,068,665

14,142,686

-

(2,167,463)
(278,546)

(1,431,039)

8,669,851

-

8,669,851

Retained
earnings
GH¢
9,349,883

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
DECEMBER 2013

ARB APEX BANK LIMITED

(531,850)
48,561

-

-

580,411

327,107

-

278,546

-

-

-

-

Regulatory credit
risk reserve
GH¢
48,561

13,054

13,054
13,054

-

(205,526)

-

-

-

(218,580)

(218,580)

-

Other reserve
GH¢
13,054

3,595,451
7,484,742

-

3,889,291

9,652,205

-

2,167,463
-

-

-

-

-

Statutory
reserve
GH¢
7,484,742

40,231
25,806,885

7,190,902
13,054
7,203,956
(779,442)

19,342,140

32,850,812

23,695

-

(1,431,039)

8,451,271

(218,580)

8,669,851

Total
GH¢
25,806,885
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

ARB APEX BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

2013
GH¢

2012
GH¢

8,669,851

7,190,902

173,271
1,097,210
(245,387)
27,842
(114,068)
(429,792)
9,178,927

(140,493)
985,233
(159,315)
(8,207)
(114,370)
(1,434,195)
6,319,555

(27,936,334)
(2,616,667)
(407,922)
18,740,633
9,244,738

(4,026,107)
(2,256,049)
(264,527)
14,299,860
6,957,467

6,203,375

21,030,199

12,981
(2,242)
(16,917,527)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

9,024
2,295,478
39,695
(8,927,136)

Net cash flows used in investing activities

'
'16,582,9392'

(17,314,179)

Dividend paid to equity holders
Proceed from share issue

(1,431,039)
23,695

(779,442)
40,232

Net cash flows used in financing activities

(1,407,344)

(739,210)

(Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Exchange difference

11,786,9082'
93,870,125
429,792

2,976,810
89,459,120
1,434,195

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT 31 DECEMBER

92,513,009'

93,870,125

Note
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax
to net cash flows:
Impairment loss/(reversal)
Depreciation
Notional Interest income
Loss/(profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Capital grant amortisation
Exchange gains
Working capital adjustments:
Increase in advances and loans
Increase in other assets and prepayments
Decrease in interest payable and unearned discount
Increase in due to customers/Rural Banks
Increase in other liabilities
Net cash flows from operating activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of assets held for sale
Sales/(purchase) of held to maturity investments

!"#"$%&'()*+',*-").+".&'/)0.&

'

(407,391)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The attached notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Statement of compliance

1.1

ACTIVITIES

The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial
Reporting
Standards
(IFRS)
and
Interpretations issued by the International
Financial
Reporting
Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB).

The ARB Apex Bank Ltd is a mini Central
Bank in Ghana for the Rural/ Community
Banks (RCBs) financed mainly through the
Rural Financial Services Project (RFSP),
which is a Government of Ghana project to
holistically address the operational
bottlenecks of the rural financial sector with
the aim of broadening and deepening
financial intermediation in the rural areas.

2.1

The ARB Apex Bank Limited is registered
and incorporated in Ghana as a public
limited liability company under the
Companies Act, 1963 (Act 179) to provide
corporate loans to rural banks, monitor their
operations and serve as a primary dealer in
the purchase of investment instruments on
their behalf.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS
In the process of applying the Bank's
accounting policies, management has
exercised judgment and estimates in
determining the amounts recognized in the
financial statements. The most significant
uses of judgment and estimates are as
follows:

2.0 BASIS OF PREPARATION

Going concern

Presentation of financial statements

The Bank’s management has made an
assessment of the Bank’s ability to continue
as a going concern and is satisfied that the
Bank has the resources to continue in
business for the foreseeable future.
Furthermore, management is not aware of
any material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt upon the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Therefore, the
financial statements continue to be prepared
on the going concern basis.

The bank presents its statement of financial
position broadly in order of liquidity.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount reported in the
statement of financial position only when
there is a current legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liability
simultaneously. Income and expenses are not
offset in profit or loss unless required or
permitted by any accounting standard or
interpretation, and as specifically disclosed
in the accounting policies of the bank.

Impairment losses on loans and
advances
The Bank reviews its individually significant
loans and advances at each statement-offinancial-position date to assess whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in profit
or loss. In particular, management’s
judgement is required in the estimation of
the amount and timing of future cash flows
when determining the impairment loss.
These estimates are based on assumptions

The financial statements have been prepared
in Ghana Cedi (GHC) and under the
historical cost convention (unless otherwise
stated).
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about a number of factors described in the
next paragraph and actual results may differ,
resulting in future changes to the allowance.

considers the interest rates of government
bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid and that
have terms to maturity approximating the
terms of the related pension liability. See
note 22 for the post-employment medical
benefit assumptions.

Loans and advances that have been assessed
individually and found not to be impaired
and all individually insignificant loans and
advances are then assessed collectively, in
groups of assets with similar risk
characteristics, to determine whether
provision should be made due to incurred
loss events for which there is objective
evidence, but the effects of which are not
yet evident. The collective assessment takes
account of data from the loan portfolio
(such as levels of arrears, credit utilisation,
loan-to-collateral
ratios,
etc.),
and
judgements on the effect of concentrations
of risks and economic data (including levels
of unemployment, real estate prices indices,
country risk and the performance of
different individual groups).

Fair value of financial instruments
Where the fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded on the statement
of financial position cannot be derived from
active markets, they are determined using a
variety of valuation techniques that include
the use of mathematical models. The inputs
to these models are derived from observable
market data where possible, but if this is not
available, judgement is required to establish
fair values. The judgements include
considerations of liquidity and model inputs
such as volatility and discount rates,
prepayment rates and default rate
assumptions for asset-backed securities. The
bank has no assets that have been fair valued.

The impairment loss on loans and advances
is disclosed in more detail in Note 14.
Post-employment medical benefits

Property, plant and equipment and
Intangible asset

The present value of the post-employment
medical benefit obligations depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions. Any change in these
assumptions will impact the carrying amount
of post-employment medical benefit
obligations.

Critical judgments are utilized in determining
amortization rates and useful lives of these
assets and in calculating the amount of
interest to capitalize against projects in
progress at the end of the period is
described in more detail in Note 17.

The assumptions used in determining the
net cost for medical benefits include the
discount rate. The Bank determines the
appropriate discount rate at the end of each
year. This is the interest rate that should be
used to determine the present value of
estimated future cash outflows expected to
be required to settle the post-employment
medicalbenefit obligations. In determining
the appropriate discount rate, the Bank

2.2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following are the significant accounting
policies applied by the Bank in preparing its
financial statements:
2.2.1 Property, plant and equipment
The Bank recognizes an item of property,
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plant and equipment as an asset when it is
probable that future economic benefits will
flow to it and the cost can be reliably
measured.
Property, plant and equipment is stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment in value. Depreciation is
provided on the depreciable amount of each
asset on a straight-line basis over the
anticipated useful life of the asset. The
depreciable amount related to each asset is
determined as the difference between the
cost and the residual value of the asset. The
residual value is the estimated amount, net
of disposal costs that the Bank would
currently obtain from the disposal of an
asset in a similar age and condition as
expected at the end of the useful life of the
asset.

of fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present values using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the
carrying amount of the asset does not
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceeds
the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in profit or loss.

The current annual depreciation rates for
each class of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the item.
Any gain or loss arising on Derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in
the profit or loss in the year the item is
derecognized.

Office equipment
Furniture and fittings
Plant and equipment
Computer software
Computers and accessories
Motor vehicles

20%
15%
20%
20%
33.33%
20%

Costs associated with routine servicing and
maintenance of assets are expensed as
incurred. Subsequent expenditure is only
capitalized if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Bank.

Residual values, useful lives and methods of
depreciation for property, plant and
equipment are reviewed, and adjusted
prospectively if appropriate, at each financial
year end.
The amount to be capitalized in respect of
rented property is all cost incurred in
improving and adapting the property to the
Bank’s requirements.
Where there is
reasonable doubt on the length of
occupancy, depreciation is based on the
length of the tenancy agreement.

The carrying values of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed for indications of
impairment annually, or when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. If any
such indication exists and where the carrying
values exceed the estimated recoverable
amount, the assets or cash-generating units
are written down to their recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of
property, plant and equipment is the greater

2.2.2 Government grants
Government grants are recognized when
grants are received or where there is
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reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognized as income over
the period necessary to match the grant on
a systematic basis to the costs that it is
intended to compensate. Where the grant
relates to an asset, it is recognized as
deferred income and released to income in
equal amounts over the expected useful life
of the related asset.

translation of monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions.
The source of the Bank’s exchange rates is
the Ghana Association of Bankers as
published on the Bank of Ghana Website.

Where the Bank receives non-monetary
grants, the asset and the grant are recorded
gross at nominal amounts and released to
profit or loss over the expected useful life
and pattern of consumption of the benefit
of the underlying asset by equal annual
instalments. Where loans or similar
assistance are provided by governments or
related institutions with an interest rate
below the current applicable market rate, the
effect of this favourable interest is regarded
as additional government grant.

2.2.4 Employee benefits, pension and postemployment
The cost of all short-term employee benefits
is recognized during the period employees
render services, unless the entity uses the
services of employees in the construction of
an asset, at which stage it is included as part
of the related property, plant and equipment
item.
Leave benefits

2.2.3 Foreign currencies translations

Annual leave is provided in the period that
the leave accrued.

Assets and liabilities expressed in foreign
currencies are translated into Ghana Cedi at
the rates of exchange ruling at the reporting
date. Transactions during the year are
translated at the rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Gains or losses on
exchange are recognised in the profit and
lossunder the heading “Other Operating
Income”

Social security contributions
The Bank contributes to the defined
contribution schemes (the Social Security
Fund) on behalf of employees. This is a
national pension scheme under which the
Bank pays 13% of qualifying employees’
basic monthly salaries to a state managed
Social Security Fund for the benefit of the
employees. All employer contributions are
charged to profit or loss as incurred and
included under personnel expenses.

Transactions in foreign currencies are
initially recorded by the Bank at their
respective functional currency spot rates at
the date the transaction first qualifies for
recognition.

2.2.5.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange
at the reporting date.

Post-employment medical benefit

The Bank provides post-employment
medical benefits to its retirees which are
accrued as a liability in the financial
statements, using the projected unit credit
method. The entitlement to these benefits is
conditional on the employee remaining in

Differences arising on settlement or
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service up to retirement age and the
completion of a minimum service period.
The expected costs of these benefits are
accrued over the period of employment.

employee benefits on the basis that such
facilities are granted to staff on the
assumption of their continued future service
to the Bank and not for their past service.
The Bank’s Lending Rate adjusted for risk
not associated with the Bank’s staff is
applied to fair value such facilities. Any
discount arising there from is recognised as
a prepaid staff benefit which is amortised
through profit or loss over the shorter of the
life of the related facilities and expected
average remaining working lives of
employees.

The cost of providing benefits under the
defined benefit plan is determined using the
projected unit credit method. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains
and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding net interest (not applicable to the
Bank) and the return on plan assets
(excluding net interest), are recognised
immediately in the statement of financial
position with a corresponding debit or credit
to retained earnings through OCI in the
period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods.

2.2.6. Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is
probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Bank and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Details of the revenue
recognition procedure are as stated below:

Past service costs are recognised in profit or
loss on the earlier of:

(i) Interest and similar income and
expense

• The date of the plan amendment or
curtailment, and

Interest income or expense is recorded using
the effective interest rate, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. The Bank currently does
not charge any additional fee to the interest
on the loan. This has resulted in the effective
interest rate being equal to the nominal rate
on the loan. The carrying amount of the
financial asset or financial liability is adjusted
if the Bank revises its estimates of payments
or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is
calculated based on the original effective
interest rate and the change incarrying
amount is recorded as ’Other operating
income’. However, for a reclassified financial
asset for which the Bank subsequently
increases its estimates of future cash receipts
as a result of increased recoverability of
those cash receipts, the effect of that
increase is recognised as an adjustment to

• The date that the bank recognises
restructuring-related costs
Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net defined benefit
liability or asset. The Bank recognises the
following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation under ‘other operating expenses’
in the statement of comprehensive income:
Service costs comprising current service
costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments andnon-routine settlements.
The post-employment health care benefit
obligations are valued annually by
independent qualified actuaries.
Other employee benefits - loans at
concessionary rate
The Bank grants facilities to staff of the
Bank on concessionary terms. The Bank
recognises such offerings as part of
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the effective interest rate from the date of
the change in estimate.
Once the recorded value of a financial asset
or a group of similar financial assets has
been reduced due to an impairment loss,
interest income continues to be recognised
using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.

measured initially at their fair value plus
transaction costs, except in the case of
financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
(iii) Financial assets or financial
liabilities held–for–trading.
Financial assets or financial liabilities held–
for–trading are recorded in the statement of
financial position at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recognised in net interest
income. ‘Net trading income’.

(ii) Fee and commission income
The Bank earns fee and commission income
mainly from brokerage fees on services
provided to itscustomers.

The Bank has not designated any financial
instrument as held–for–trading

(iii) Fee income from providing services

(iv) Financial assets and financial
liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss

Brokerage fees income arising from
brokerage of government bonds and bills
for a third party. Income from such as the
arrangement of the purchase of investment
securities are recognised on completion of
the underlying transaction.

Financial assets and financial liabilities
classified in this category are those that have
been designated by management on initial
recognition. Management may only
designate an instrument at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition when
the following criteria are met, and
designation is determined on an instrument
by instrument basis:

Fee income for rediscounting of bonds and
treasury bills are also recognised on
completion of the service.
2.2.7 Financial instruments – initial
recognition and subsequent
measurement

2.2.7 Financial instruments – initial
recognition and subsequent
measurement

(i) Date of recognition

The designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the
assets or liabilities or recognising gains or
losses on them on a different basis.

All financial assets and liabilities are initially
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date
that the Bank becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
(ii) Initial measurement of financial
instruments

The assets and liabilities are part of a bank
of financial assets, financial liabilities or both
which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or
investment strategy.
The financial instrument contains one or
more embedded derivatives which

The classification of financial instruments at
initial recognition depends on the purpose
and management’s intention for which the
financial instruments were acquired and their
characteristics. All financial instruments are
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significantly modify the cash flows that
otherwise would be required by the contract.
Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recorded in
the statement of financial position at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recorded in
profit or loss.The Bank has not designated
any financial instrument as fair value
through profit or loss.

maturity (other than in certain specific
circumstances), the entire category would be
tainted and would have tobe reclassified as
available–for–sale. Furthermore, the Bank
would be prohibited from classifying any
financial asset as held to maturity during the
following two years.

(v) Available–for–sale financial
investments

Loans and advances to customers and due
from bank includes loans and advances to
customers originated by the company which
are not either classified as held for trading or
designated at fair value. Loans and advances
are recognised when cash is advanced to the
borrower. They are derecognised either
when borrowers repay their obligation or are
written off.

(vii)Loans and advances

Available–for–sale investments include
equity and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as available–for –sale
are those which are neither classified as
held–for–trading nor designated at fair value
through profit or loss.
After initial measurement, available–for–sale
financial investments are subsequently
measured at fair value.

They are initially recognised at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction cost and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method less
impairment loss.

Unrealised gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity (other comprehensive
income) in the ‘Available–for–sale reserve

2.2.8. Derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities

The Bank has not designated any of its
financial instruments as available–for–sale.

(i)Financial assets

(vi) Held–to–maturity financial
investments

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part
of a financial asset or part of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when:

Held–to–maturity financial investments are
non–derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities,
which the Bank has the intention and ability
to hold to maturity. After initial
measurement, held–to–maturity financial
investments are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR, less
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and feesthat are an
integral part of the EIR. The amortisation
is included in ‘Interest and similar income’
in profit or loss. If the Bank were to sell or
reclassify more than an insignificant amount
of held–to–maturity investments before

The rights to receive cash flows from the
asset have expired.
The Bank has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass–through’ arrangement; and
either the Bank has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, orthe
Bank has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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When the Bank has transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass–through arrangement,
and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognised to the extent of the
Bank’s continuing involvement in the asset.
In that case, the Bank also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Bank has retained.

recognition, there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or bank of financial assets
has become impaired. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that the
borrower or bank of borrowers is
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, or the fact that the debt is being
restructured to reduce the burden on the
borrower.
(ii) Impairment of financial assets
The Bank makes an allowance for
unrecoverable loans and receivables, held-tomaturity investments and available for sale
financial assets when there is objective
evidence that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. Significant management
judgment is required to determine when
objective evidence of impairment exists, and
also in estimating future cash flows from the
assets.

Continuing involvement that takes the form
of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the
Bank could be required to repay.
(ii) Financial liabilities
A financial liabilities includes due to
customers, other liabilities and interest
payable are derecognized when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.Where an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different
terms,or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability.

(iii) Financial assets carried at
amortised cost

(i) Framework for impairing financial
assets

For financial assets carried at amortised cost
(such as amounts due from rural banks as
well as held–to–maturity investments), the
Bank first assesses individually whether
objective evidence of impairment exists for
financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the
Bank determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, it includes the asset
in a bank of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is, or continues
to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

At each reporting date the Bank assesses
whether, as a result of one or more events
(loss event) occurring after initial

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the

The difference between the carrying value
of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognized in profit or
loss.
2.2.9 Impairment of financial assets
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difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future expected
credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the
profit and loss.

nine months. This policy is applied by the
bank at the individual security level.
If an available-for-sale equity security is
impaired based upon the company’s
qualitative or quantitative impairment
criteria, any further declines in the fair value
at subsequent reporting dates are recognized
as impairments. Therefore, at each reporting
period, for an equity security that is
determined to be impaired based upon the
company’s impairment criteria, an
impairment is recognized for the difference
between the fair value and the original cost
basis, less any previously recognized
impairments.

Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.
(i) Financial assets carried at amortised
cost

Determining fair value
The interest income is recorded as part of
‘Interest and similar income’. Loans together
with the associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been transferred to the Bank. If, in a
subsequent year, the amount of the
estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is
increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a future write–off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to
the ’Credit loss expense’.

The Bank measures financial instruments,
such as, available for sale financial assets at
fair value. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:
• In the principal market for the asset or
liability, or

(ii) Impairment of available-for-sale
investments

• In the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability

If there is objective evidence that the cost
may not be recovered, an available-for-sale
equity security is considered to be impaired.
Objective evidence that the cost may not be
recovered, in addition to qualitative
impairment criteria, includes a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below
cost. The company’s policy considers a
significant decline to be one in which the fair
value is below the cost by more than 20%
and a prolonged decline to be one in which
fair value is below the cost for greater than

The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible to by the Bank.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best
interest. A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market
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participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use. The Bank uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities
for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy disclosed in
note 34

If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows
at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. Where discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognized as a borrowing cost.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. Contingent liabilities and
contingent assets are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements.

(iii) Renegotiated loans
Where possible, the Bank seeks to
restructure loans rather than to take
possession of collateral. This may involve
extending the payment arrangements and
the agreement of new loan conditions. Once
the terms have been renegotiated any
impairment is measured using the original
EIR as calculated before the modification of
terms and the loan is no longer considered
past due. Management continually reviews
renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria
are met and that future payments are likely
to occur. The loans continue to be subject
to an individual or collective impairment
assessment, calculated using the loan’s
original effective interest rate.

{a} Loans and advances
To cater for any shortfall between the Bank
of Ghana’s credit loss provision
requirements and loans and advances
impairments based on IFRS principles, a
transfer is made from distributable to nondistributable reserves in the statement of
changes in equity, being the regulatory
general risk reserve. The non-distributable
regulatory general credit risk reserve ensures
that minimum regulatory provisioning
requirements as established by the Bank of
Ghana are maintained.
2.2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

2.2.10 Provisions

Cash and cash equivalents as referred to in
the statement of cash flow comprises cash
on hand, non–restricted current accounts
with central banks and amounts due from
banks on demand or with an original
maturity of three months or less. Cash and
cash equivalents are subsequently measured
at amortized cost.

The Bank recognizes provisions when it has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event and it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.
Where the Bank expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognized as a separate
asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain.

2.2.12 Intangible assets
The Bank’s intangible assets are the value of
computer software. An intangible asset is
recognised only when its cost can be
measured reliably and it is probable that the
expected future economic benefits that are
attributable to it will flow to the bank.
Intangible assets acquired separately are

The expense relating to any provision is
presented in profit or loss net of any
reimbursement.
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measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

.

Bank’s financial assets, but will not have an
impact on classification and measurements
of the Bank’s financial liabilities. The Bank
will quantify the effect in conjunction with
the other phases, when the final standard
including all phases is issued.

The amortisation expense on intangible
assets is recognised in profit or loss in the
expense category consistent with the
function of
the intangible asset.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight–
line method to write down the cost of
intangible assets to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives as follows:
Computer software - 5 years.

Investment Entities (Amendments to
IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27)
These amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
provide an exception to the consolidation
requirement for entities that meet the
definition of an investment entity under
IFRS 10. The exception to consolidation
requires investment entities to account for
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or
loss. This amendment is not expected to
have any impact on the Bank.

2.2.13 Standards issued but not yet effective
The standards and interpretations that are
issued, but not yet effective, up to the date
of issuance of the Bank’s financial
statements are disclosed below. The Bank
intends to adopt these standards, if
applicable, when they become effective.

IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities - Amendments to
IAS 32

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

These amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to
set-off ” and the criteria for nonsimultaneous settlement mechanisms of
clearing houses to qualify for offsetting.
These are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014. These
amendments are not expected to be relevant
to the Bank.

IFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first phase of
the IASB’s work on the replacement of IAS
39 and applies to classification and
measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities as defined in IAS 39. The
standard was initially effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013, but Amendments to IFRS 9
Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosures, issued in December
2011, moved the mandatory effective date to
1 January 2015. At its July 2013 meeting, the
IASB tentatively decided to defer the
mandatory effective date of IFRS 9 until the
issue date of the completed version of IFRS
9 is known. In subsequent phases, the IASB
is addressing hedge accounting and
impairment of financial assets after 1
January 2015. The adoption of the first
phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the
classification and measurement of the

IFRIC Interpretation 21 Levies (IFRIC
21)
IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognises
a liability for a levy when the activity that
triggers payment, as identified by the
relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is
triggered upon reaching a minimum
threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no
liability should be anticipated before the
specified minimum threshold is reached.
IFRIC 21 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The
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Bank does not expect that IFRIC 21 will
have material financial impact in future
financial statements.

• IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements;
• IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities;

IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting –
Amendments to IAS 39

• IAS 1 Clarification of the requirement for
comparative information; and

These amendments provide relief from
discontinuing hedge accounting when
novation of a derivative designated as a
hedging instrument meets certain criteria.
These amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014. The Bank has no derivatives.
However, these amendments would be
considered for future novations.

• IAS 19 Employee Benefits.
The new amendments however do not
impact the annual financial statements of the
Bank.
The nature and the impact of each new
standard and amendments are described
below:

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets – Amendments
to IAS 36 Impairment of Assets

IAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income – Amendments
toIAS 1

These amendments remove the unintended
consequences of IFRS 13 on the disclosures
required under IAS 36. In addition, these
amendments require disclosure of the
recoverable amounts for the assets or CGUs
for which impairment loss has been
recognized or reversed during the period.
These
amendments
are
effective
retrospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014 with earlier
application permitted, provided IFRS 13 is
also applied.

The amendments to IAS 1 introduce a
grouping of items presented in other
comprehensive income. Items that will be
reclassified (‘recycled’) to profit or loss at a
future point in time (e.g., net loss or gain on
AFS financial assets) have to be presented
separately from items that will not be
reclassified (e.g., revaluation of land and
buildings, unrecognized actuarial gains or
losses). The amendments affect presentation
only and have no impact on the Bank’s
financial position or performance.

2.2.14 New and amended standards and
interpretations
Several amendments apply for the first time
in 2013 including:
• IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements;
• IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement;
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3.

INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME

Cash and short term funds
Loans and advances to rural banks
Financial investments- available-for-sale
Others

4.

14,534,277

15,196,138

214,422

156,601

27,677,784

21,466,318

2013
GH¢
392,108
2,096,038
234,994
1,497,420
57,093

2012
GH¢
411,086
1,534,980
62,626
1,508,354
37,325

4,277,653

3,554,371

2013
GH¢
1,012,104
207
1,013,954
463,442
45,286
1,481,517
291,820
318,300
747,726
97,324
5,471,680

2012
GH¢
884,461
331
956,750
282,337
36,129
616,353
328,706
241,880
682,976
5,105
4,035,028

(1,037,164)

(288,146)

4,434,516

3,746,882

INTEREST AND SIMILAR EXPENSE

Clearing balances
Fixed and time ACOD
Borrowings-Inter-Bank
Repo -RCBs
Staff balances

5.

3,946,305

2012
GH¢
4,358,302
1,755,277

2013
GH¢
8,982,780

NET FEES AND COMMISSIONS INCOME

Apex link and money transfers
Other Banks Funds Transfer
Western Union/ Foreign Transfers
Micro Finance/Managed Funds
Specie Fees
Brokerage Fees
Commission on clearing
Training Fees
Commission on MICR Cheque
Other commissions
Less Fees and commission expenses
Brokerage fees
Net fees and commission income

31
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6
OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Exchange gain
Capital grant amortization
Operating grant for staff costs
Notional interest
(Loss)/profit on disposal
Gains from foreign currency dealings
Other income

7.

4,543,471

2013
GH¢

2012
GH¢

(173,271)

140,493

(173,271)

140,493

2013
GH¢

2012
GH¢

11,413,132
1,740,787
3,455,262

8,982,590
1,264,041
2,727,883

16,609,181

12,974,514

2013
GH¢
131,344
432,472
720,682
50,600
1,097,210
291,269
382,448
391,067
582,685
243,263
597,790
384,000
2,381,467

2012
GH¢
60,135
542,962
567,627
44,000
985,233
242,238
271,603
303,364
538,514
113,063
281,749
167,964
2,058,925

7,686,297

6,177,377

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE

Professional fees
Directors’ fees and allowances
Utilities and cleaning
Audit fees
Depreciation
Staff training
Rental charges payable under operating leases
Training of rural banks
Repairs and maintenance
Meeting and conferencing
Travels (Local and foreign)
Advertising and marketing
OthersNote 9a

9a.

5,303,953

PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other costs

9.

2012
GH¢
1,434,195
93,955
111,567
159,315
8,207
2,469,631
266,601

IMPAIRMENT (LOSS)/REVERSAL

Loans to RCBs

8.

2013
GH¢
429,792
114,068
38,684
245,387
(27,842)
4,003,550
500,314

OTHERS
32
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Travels (Local and foreign)
Advertising and marketing
OthersNote 9a

382,448
391,067
582,685
243,263
597,790
384,000
2,381,467

271,603
303,364
538,514
113,063
281,749
167,964
2,058,925

2013

2012

GH¢

GH¢

48,974

51,302

Communication -Telephone, Bandwidth and internet

286,234

1,110,764

Insurance

187,171

133,613

Printing/stationery

163,500

80,367

Other operating costs

727,669

145,688

Fuel and lubricants

236,874

190,274

Vehicle maintenance Costs

152,165

110,408

82,960

69,049

293,418

50,130

27,993

-

2,388

1,449

Bank Charges

18,771

14,102

GIS/Swift Charges

42,476

35,020

Postage

80,651

63,018

Overs and shorts in tills

30,223

3,741

2,381,467

2,058,925
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Specie

Subscription/License and Dues
Donations
New Products expenses
Clearing Houses Expenses

10.

TAXATION
The Bank is on tax holiday until 2014 year of assessment. Corporate tax rate applicable to the bank is
8%.

10a.

DEFERRED TAX

Opening balance (assets)/liabilities
Tax (recovered)/expense to OCI

33

11.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

2013
GH¢

2012
GH¢

4,351

-

(23,736)

4,351

19,385

4,351
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Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Bank by the weighted21average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
year.
There are no other class of shares that will affect the basic earnings per share. Diluted earnings per share
will be equal to the basic earnings per share as there are no dilutive instruments.
The following table shows the income and share data used in the basic and diluted earnings per share

Net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent
Average number of ordinary shares for basic earnings
per share
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

2013
GH¢

2012
GH¢

8,669,851

7,190,902

10,116,198

10,010,715

2013
GH¢
0.86
0.86

2012
GH¢
0.718
0.718

There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the
reporting date and the date of the completion of these financial statements which would require the
restatement of earnings per share.
12.

CASH AND BALANCE WITH CENTRAL BANK

Cash on hand
Current account with the central bank

2013
GH¢
16,401,242
8,431,448

2012
GH¢
6,967,756
17,104,133

24,832,690

24,071,889

There are no restrictions on these cash balances and the cash with central bank are non-interest bearing.
13.

CASH DUE FROM BANKS

Placements with other banks
Loans and advances
Uncleared cheques
Other amounts due

2013
GH¢
61,500,000
4,426,184
1,754,135

2012
GH¢
25,000,000
39,000,000
2,687,722
3,110,514

67,680,319

69,798,236

There are no indications of impairment for cash and due from bank for 2013.
14.

LOANS AND ADVANCES
34

2013

2012

GH¢

GH¢

Placements with other banks
Loans and advances
Uncleared cheques
Other amounts due
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2013
GH¢
61,500,000
4,426,184
1,754,135

2012
GH¢
25,000,000
39,000,000
2,687,722
3,110,514
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There are no indications of impairment for cash and due from bank for 2013.

14.

LOANS AND ADVANCES

ARB APEX BANK LIMITED
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Capital projects
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2013
Micro finance
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Short term loan
Long term Loan
Rural Banks automobile loan
Staff loan
Total
Less: Allowance for impairment losses

2013
GH¢
6,606,976
10,047,368
8,898,928
9,165,239
101,239
2,159,797
3,553,581
40,533,128
(333,324)

2012
GH¢
1,073,500
2,606,876
1,141,228
3,923,509
202,483
917,845
2,485,964
12,351,405
(160,053)

40,199,804

12,191,352

All loans have been assessed on an individual Impairment allowance basis.
A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for loans and advancesis as follows:

15.

Balance as at 1 January
Charge/(reversal) for the year

2013
GH¢
160,053
173,271

2012
GH¢
300,546
(140,493)

Balance as at 31 December

333,324

160,053

2013
GH¢

2012
GH¢

46,830,566
6,456,374
7,000,000

40,327,570
1,933,509
20,321,339

60,286,940

62,582,418

2013
GH¢
4,198,683
1,971,470
3,980,596

2012
GH¢
3,572,349
252,471
3,709,262

10,150,749

7,534,082

HELD TO MATURITY

Government debt securities
Treasury bills discounted
Treasury bills held to maturity

16.

OTHER ASSETS

Accrued income
Prepayments
Sundry receivables

35

36

99,179
708,939
708,867

68,241
543,660
2,866,042

-

-

1,370,298

609,760

679,267

1,542,007

238,217
(33,399)

1,337,189

2,221,274

GH¢
1,797,637
475,557
(51,920)

Office
equipment

115,298

383,999

49,912
(8,740)

342,827

499,297

GH¢
493,972
32,410
(27,085)

Furniture
& fittings

885,199

1,580,931

424,574
(132,844)

1,289,201

2,466,130

GH¢
1,944,347
654,627
(132,844)

Motor
vehicles

257,664

1,719,530

201,163
-

1,518,367

1,977,194

GH¢
1,592,702
384,492
-

Computerhardware

7,762,361

-

-

-

7,762,361

GH¢
474,286
7,288,075
-

Work in
progress

63,698

115,250

15,924
-

99,326

178,948

GH¢
99,326
79,622
-

Computersoftware

Total

14,708,694

6,594,316

1,097,210
(174,983)

5,672,089

21,303,010

GH¢
12,587,723
8,927,136
(211,849)

Government grants have been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies to these grants.

Charge for the year
Disposals
Balance as at
31/12/2013
Carrying amount as
of 31/12/2013

475,419

1,417,806

3,409,702

1,370,298

-

GH¢
1,417,806
-

GH¢
3,397,349
12,353
-

Buildings

Improvement
on leased
premises

GH¢
1,370,298
-

Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1/1/2013

Cost
As at 1/1/2013
Additions
Disposals
Balance as at
31/12/2013

Land
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609,760
808,046

475,419
2,921,930

-

1,370,298

109,256
-

67,947
-

500,504

1,417,806

GH¢
1,417,806
-

-

407,472

3,397,349

GH¢
3,397,349
-

Buildings

Improvement
on leased
premises

460,448

1,337,189

183,297
(6,617)

1,160,509

1,797,637

GH¢
1,554,584
254,445
(11,392)

Office
equipment

151,145

342,827

60,833
(556)

282,550

493,972

GH¢
454,778
31,390
8,360
(556)

Furniture
& fittings

655,146

1,289,201

312,077
(10,366)

987,490

1,944,347

GH¢
1,837,166
117,547
(10,366)

Motor
vehicles

74,335

1,518,367

251,823
(10,870)

1,277,414

1,592,702

GH¢
1,599,562
4,009
(10,869)

Computerhardware

-

99,326

-

99,326

99,326

GH¢
99,326
-

Computersoftware

474,286

-

-

-

474,286

GH¢
482,646
117,547
(125,907)
-

Work in
progress

6,915,634

5,672,089

985,233
(28,409)

4,715,265

12,587,723

GH¢
12,213,515
407,391
(33,183)

Total

Government grants have been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these
grants.

Charge for the year
Disposals
Balance as at
31/12/2012
Carrying amount as
of 31/12/2012

-

1,370,298

GH¢
1,370,298
-

Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1/1/2012

Cost
As at 1/1/2012
Additions
Transfer
Disposals
Balance as at
31/12/2012

Land
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18.

ASSET HELD FOR SALE
This represents equipment bought in 2012 to upgrade the server room at the data centre; however, the
project was subsequently cancelled. This equipment have been put on sale.

19.

DUE TO CUSTOMERS
2013
GH¢
149,444,137
1,099,058
2,889,646

2012
GH¢
130,436,383
796,985
3,458,840

153,432,841

134,692,208

2013
GH¢
25,207,768
332,000
1,949,497

2012
GH¢
16,073,707
332,000
1,949,609

662,281

309,175

28,151,546

18,664,491

2013
GH¢

2012
GH¢

At 1 January
Additions
Released to profit or loss

2,992,863
39,695
(114,068)

3,107,233
(114,370)

At 31 December

2,918,490

2,992,863

Due to rural banks
Staff balances
Other current accounts

20.

OTHER LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and sundry creditors
Regulatory charges
Accrued expenses
Post-employment medical benefit obligation (note
23)

These other liabilities are not interest bearing.
21.

GOVERNMENT GRANT

Government grants have been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and
equipment.There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these grants.
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22.
INTEREST PAYABLE AND UNEARNED DISCOUNT

Accrued interest payable
Unearned discount

23.

2012
GH¢

2013
GH¢
175,500
415,660

354,773
644,309

591,160

999,082

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN
The ARB Apex Bank provides post-employment medical benefits to all employees of the Bank. These
benefits are unfunded. The following table summarizes the changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation.
2013
2012
GH¢
GH¢
Defined benefit obligation at 1 January
309,175
31,224
Past service costs
54,168
226,634
Interest cost
64,927
51,572
Current service cost
19,575
Benefit paid
(8,305)
(2,425)
Actuarial (loss)/gains
(17,405)
242,316
At 31 December
Expenses recognized
Current and past service costs
Interest costs
Amount recognized in OCI
Actuarial (loss)/gains
Deferred tax (recovered)/charged

662,281

309,175

54,168
64,927
119,095

246,209
51,572
297,781

242,316
(23,736)
218,580

(17,405)
4,351
13,054

This retirement benefit is only available on retirement with the Bank at the age of 60.The principal
assumptions used in determining pension obligations for the Bank’s plan are shown below:
2013
%
21
15
11.5

Discount rate
Salary percentile increase
Inflation on medical cost

2012
%
20
10
9.7

The post-retirement medical benefit is assumed to be an average of GH¢6,500 inflated at 11.5% annually.
It has been assumed that the average life expectancy beyond the retirement age of 60 is 10 years for both
men and women.
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24.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
Shareholdings
The rural banks are the owners as well as the only customers of the ARB Apex Bank Ltd. None of the ru ral
banks has significant shareholding to influence the Board’s decision-making. Transactions conducted
between the Bank and rural banks are banking and non-banking business services at arm’s length.
Apex Bank is legally required to issue shares only to the shareholders of the Bank, which are the rural banks
in Ghana. As at December 2013 all the rural banks had a minimum of 20,000 shares allocated to them.
Compensation to key management personnel
Total compensation of key management personnel of the Bank at 31 December 2013:

Wages and salaries
Allowance

2013
GH¢

2012
GH¢

1,150,823
587,198

842,312
357,575

1,738,021

1,199,887

Total loan balances of key management staff stood at GH¢ 474,518(2011: GH¢ 256,790).
25.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

Cash and balance with central bank
Cash and due from banks

26.

2012
GH¢
24,071,889
69,798,236

92,513,009

93,870,125

2013
GH¢
(1,431,039)

2012
GH¢
(779,442)

DIVIDENDS PAID AND PROPOSED
Declared and paid during the year:
Dividend for 2012: GH¢0.1436 per share

27.

2013
GH¢
24,832,690
67,680,319

STATED CAPITAL
31
40

GH¢
(1,431,039)

Declared and paid during the year:
Dividend for 2012: GH¢0.1436 per share

GH¢
(779,442)
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STATED
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27.
31 DECEMBER 2013
Authorized shares
31
The Bank is registered with 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of no par value.
Ordinary shares issued and fully paid
2013

28.

2012

No. of
Shares

Amount
GH¢

No. of Shares

Amount
GH¢

At 1 January
Shares issued during the year

10,010,715
105,483

8,910,645
23,695

9,978,007
32,708

8,870,414
40,231

At 31 December

10,116,198

8,934,340

10,010,715

8,910,645

STATUTORY RESERVES
The statutory reserve fund is a non-distributable reserve required by Section 29 of the Banking Act, 2004(Act
673). This statute requires a mandatory transfer of a specified percentage of profit after tax, before declaring
dividends to a non-distributable statutory reserve fund. The transfer to statutory reserve fund represents 25%
of the Bank's profit after tax.

29.

At 1 January
Transfer in 2013 (25% of profit)

2013
GH¢
7,484,742
2,106,884

2012
GH¢
3,889,291
3,595,451

At 31 December

9,591,626

7,484,742

REGULATORY CREDIT RISK RESERVES
The credit risk reserve fund is a non-distributable reserve required by the Bank of Ghana to account for
differences between impairment provisions on loans and advances per IFRS and the specific and general
provisions on loans and advances and contingent liabilities per the Bank of Ghana provisioning methodology.

32
41

30.
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7,281,611

8,179,279

201,179,032

Total financial assets

Other liabilities
Interest payable and
unearned discount
Total liabilities

Due to customers

Financial liabilities

62,582,418

78,031,824

8,179,279

999,082

597,131
184,015,704

591,160
182,175,547

154,355,781

18,664,491

134,692,208
28,435,905

154,982,668

175,925,506

12,191,352

28,151,546

153,432,841

237,961,585

47,293,887

40,199,804

69,798,236

24,071,889

GH¢

2012

60,286,940

79,623,905

24,832,690

24,832,690
67,680,319

GH¢

GH¢

2013

2013

Carrying value

Financial assets
Cash and balances with
Central Bank
Cash due from banks
Loans and advances to
customers
Financial Instruments –
Held to maturity
Other assets

Fair value

Carrying value

155,914,930

1,009,174

18,853,021

136,052,735

180,629,329

7,281,611

67,145,998

14,259

82,115,572

24,071,889

GH¢

2012

Fair value

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Bank’s financial instruments that are carried in the financial
statements.

FAIR VALUES
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31.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There were no adjusting or non-adjusting events after the reporting period.

32. CONTINGENCIES
Contingent assets
There was no contingent asset as of 31 December 2013. (2012, nil)
Contingent liabilities
There was no contingent liability as of 31 December 2013. (2012, nil)
33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
There were no capital commitments as of 31 December 2013. (2012, nil)
34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT WITHIN THE ARB APEX BANK
Risk is inherent in the Bank’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing identification,
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk
management is critical to the Bank’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Bank is
accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Bank is exposed to
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk, the latter being subdivided into trading and non-trading
risks. It is also subject to various operating risks.
The independent risk control process also includes business risks such as changes in the
environment, technology and industry. The Bank's policy is to monitor those business risks through
the Bank’s strategic planning process.
Risk management structure
The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for identifying and controlling risks. However,
there are separate independent bodies responsible for managing and monitoring risks.
Board of directors
The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving
the risk management strategies and principles.
Supervisory board
The Supervisory Board has the responsibility to monitor the overall risk process within the Bank.
Risk measurement and reporting systems
Introduction and overview
Risk taking is an integral part of banking business. In undertaking its business, the ARB Apex Bank
Limited has to strike an appropriate balance between the level of risk it is willing to take and the
level of returns it desires to achieve. An effective risk management system that is commensurate
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with the size and peculiar nature of Apex
Bank’s operations, therefore, needs to be in
place to ensure that its risks are well managed
within the Bank’s risk appetite.

•
•
•
•

Market Risk
Credit Risk
Liquidity Risk
Reputational Risk

As a means of enhancing corporate
governance in the Bank, the risk
management framework of the bank seeks
to strengthen its ability to identify and
manage risks that it faces in the discharge of
its functions by identifying, assessing,
managing and monitoring key risks across all
areas of its operations as well as gathering
information on the Bank’s risk exposure for
management decision-making.

These inherent risks are managed through a
process of continuous identification,
measurement, monitoring and controls.
Details of the process are outlined in this
document as the bank continues to deepen
measures to minimize the effects of these
risks in its financial performance.
Operational risk
Operational risk is inevitable as long as the
bank remains in business. It is the risk of loss
arising from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or from
external events. Operational risk, thus
involves breakdown in internal controls and
corporate governance leading to errors,
fraud, performance failure, compromise on
the interest of the bank resulting in financial
loss.

Risk management structure
The Board of Directors has overall
responsibility for oversight of the bank’s risk
management framework. The Board’s
Finance and Audit Committee continues to
give guidance for overall risk monitoring and
control and is assisted in its functions by the
Internal Control Department of the Bank,
which undertakes both regular and ad-hoc
reviews of risk management controls and
procedures. The Credit Committee, Funds
Management & Corporate Treasury Unit and
Assets and Liabilities Management
Committee
(ALMCO)
are
directly
responsible for developing and monitoring
risks in their specific areas of operation. All
these structures work together to ensure
effective implementation of the risk
management policies and procedures of the
bank.

The Apex Bank is exposed to the following
types of risks:

Although the management of operational
risk generally involves all staff, most
operational risks are best managed within the
business lines, departments, branches and
units in which they arise. For example,
Information & Communication Technology
employees are best suited for addressing
systems-related risks. Back office staff of
Banking Operations Department and Funds
Management and Corporate Treasury Unit
are the best people to address processing
risks such as settlement risks, wrong postings
etc. Similarly, Human Capital and
Administration, and Legal Departments staff
are the appropriate people to protect the
Bank’s assets from fire, floods etc. In this
regard, Operational Risk Coordinators shall
be appointed for all departments, units and
branches to monitor and report on
operational risks in their various areas to the
Risk Management Unit.

• Operational Risk

Operational risk in the bank is managed

The bank’s risk management policies are also
established to identify and analyze risks and
set appropriate limits and controls for
effective mitigation strategies.
Risk measurement and reporting
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through the employment of various tools
which included the following qualitative and
quantitative measures:

appetite to reflect the tolerance level for
operational.
Market Risk

a. Appropriate segregation of duties
b. Independent authorization by superior
officers.
c. Reconciliation and monitoring of
transactions.
d. Documentation of controls and
procedures to address the risks identified.
e. Compliance with regulatory and other
legal requirements.
f. Calculation of capital requirement/charge
for operational risk losses.
g. Excellent workplace environment.
h. Enunciation and dissemination of
corporate values.
i. Excellent hardware and software
applications.
j. Reliable network availability.
k. Effective systems security policy, which
ensures confidentiality and integrity of the
system and related data/information.
l. Data back-up arrangements.
m.Disaster recovery plans and sites.
n. Reliable network service providers.
o. Risk mitigation including insurance.
p. Development of contingency plans
q. Training and professional development
r. Adherence to ethical and business
standards
The Bank continues to rely on directives
from the Bank of Ghana (BOG) on the
quantitative computation/assignment of
capital charge for operational risk. Currently
the directive from the BOG is the use of the
Basic Indicator Approach in current capital
adequacy computation as contained in Basel
II.

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from
adverse changes in market prices (interest
rates and foreign exchange rates). The bank
faces both interest rate and foreign currency
risk. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, whilst optimizing returns.
The bank’s involvement in foreign currency
dealings is mainly through the sale of
proceeds from the foreign remittance
business as well as occasional sale of foreign
currency to other commercial banks. The
bank, therefore manages foreign exchange
risk by ensuring that it obtains the best rates
on the market to avoid losses as much as
possible.
Interest rate risk is managed directly by
ALMCO by using market information to
determine the pricing/re-pricing of
commercial banking assets and liabilities.
In addition to the operations of the ALMCO
market risk is managed by both the Finance
and Strategic Planning Department and the
Funds Management and Corporate Treasury
Unit, by ensuringefficient management of
the following parameters:
• Structure of interest-sensitive assets and
liabilities in terms of rate bases.
• Interest rate mismatch reports/maturity
ladder of interest –bearing assets and
liabilities.

Operational risk continues to be the main
concern for the bank in general. In the
application of the Basic Indicator Approach,
capital charge for operational risk alone
formed 9.6% of the bank’s net worth. The
bank would continue to review its risk

• Daily foreign assets and liabilities position
report.
• Balance sheet management, given trends
of market interest rates and foreign
exchange rates.

45

ARB Apex Bank Annual Report 2013

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
31 DECEMBER 2013
• Monitoring and matching of maturities of
interest-sensitive assets and liabilities.
• Monitoring and matching of foreign
assets and liabilities on daily basis.
• Daily market exchange rate reports &
trend forecasting.
• Publication of discount rates & yields on
government financial instruments.

management and control are, therefore,
handled by the Credit Committee which
ensures that all credit applications are
properly appraised and fall within the Credit
policy guidelines of the bank. The credit unit
in collaboration with the committee ensures
prudent credit management through the
following:
i. Application of appropriate internal
and/or regulatory quantitative analysis.

• Commentary and prognosis of Monetary
Policy Committee of the Bank of Ghana
etc.

ii. Credit
assessment,
provisioning
Credit
analysis/prudential limits.

• Macro-economic and market trends.

reviews
and
metrics/ratio

iii. Credit portfolio reviews.

The Bank has receivables denominated in
USD. A 5% increase/decrease in the GH¢
against the USD gives rise to a
decrease/increase of GH¢ in loss
GH¢108,885 and equity. The company also
has bonds whose interest variation of 5%
will give rise to loss/profit GH¢253,140

iv. Loan classification
framework.

and

risk-rating

The bank also applies the Standardized
Approach of the Basel II to measure and
assess credit risk
The bank continues to adhere to net limits
for its counterparty dealings, based on the
net worth of each financial institution.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to a
Bank due to the failure of a counterparty
meeting its contractual obligations. It may
also be defined as the probability of loss
from a credit transaction.

The requirement for impairment is analysed
at each reporting date on an individual basis
for major clients. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
value of each class of financial assets
disclosed in Note 15.

This arises from the bank’s loans and
advances to its customers, who are the rural
and community banks (RCBs) as well as
placements with other commercial banks.

The company does not hold collateral as
security and it also evaluates the
concentration of risk with respect to loans
and advance as low.

By the nature of its operations, the Apex
Bank is not, exposed, by measure of degree,
to the kind of credit risk that commercial
banks face. Yet, the bank has consistently
adhered to all regulatory requirements
regarding credit management as prescribed
by the Bank of Ghana.

Write-off Policy
The bank writes off a loan when the credit
committee determines that the loan is nonrecoverable. Upon the recommendation of
the credit committee, write-offs are referred
to the Board and then to the Bank of Ghana
for ratification.

The Board has delegated the responsibility
for the management of credit risk to the
bank’s credit committee. Credit risk
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Reputational Risk

Environmental Responsibility
h. Adequate annual budgetary allocation for
donation and sponsorship.
i. Efficient and Effective Risk Management,
Particularly Operational, Market, Liquidity,
Credit, Legal and Regulatory Risks

Reputation, though an intangible asset, is
considered as one of the prized assets of the
Bank. The Bank’s definition of reputational
risk is the risk of loss or under performance
caused by deterioration in public perception
of (any part) the Bank, arising from adverse
publicity or rumour. This can affect the
Bank’s ability to establish new relationships
or retain existing relationships. Reputational
risk can expose the Bank to financial loss,
decline in customer base, litigation and loss
of business generally.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the bank will
encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
from its financial liabilities.
The bank’s approach to managing liquidity is
to ensure as far as possible that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due, under normal or stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to its reputation.

By the nature of its operations, reputational
risk management plays a very significant role
within the bank and the rural banking sector
in general. The bank ensures to comply with
all Legal, Statutory & Regulatory
Requirements.

The Funds Management and Corporate
Treasury Unit (FMCT) maintain a portfolio
of short term liquid assets and other
interbank facilities and ensure that liquidity
is maintained within the bank. The work of
the FMCT is supported by the ALMCO by
ensuring that the bank has adequate liquidity
at all times for its operations and to satisfy
both statutory and prudential requirements.

Credit Risk (continued)
The Research, Marketing and Corporate
Affairs Department continues to monitor
and manage reputational risk to the Bank by
undertaking customer surveys and reporting
to the appropriate business unit.

ALMCO further maintains a prudent
investment mix to ensure that there is
adequate maturing funds available to meet
any unexpected withdrawals from the Rural
and Community Bank. Daily liquidity report
is also submitted to Executive Management
for guidance and approval.

Reputational risk is difficult to quantify yet
the damage from such reputational risk
events can be devastating. The bank,
therefore, ensures to minimize the negative
impact of reputational risk exposures on its
image, earnings and capital by instituting the
following measures:
a. Strong Financial Strength
b. Excellent Customer Services
c. Timely and periodic review of service
agreements
d. Good Corporate Governance and Control
Practices
e. Balancing the Interest of all Significant
Influential Stakeholders
f. Professionalism of Employees
g. Adherence to Corporate Social and
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The Finance and Strategic Planning
Department also continues to perform both
qualitative and quantitative analysis of the
bank’s liquidity position and institutes
measures to meet all prudential and
regulatory liquidity requirements.
The net liquidity gaps resulting from liquidity
analysis of assets and liabilities of the Bank
as of 31 December 2013, and 2012 are stated
under notes 35.1and 35.2 respectively.
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Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

a. Fair value hierarchy
Fair
of financial
assets and
IFRSvalue
13 specifies
a hierarchy
of liabilities
valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation

techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from

a.
Fair value
hierarchy
independent
sources;
unobservable inputs reflect the Bank’s market assumptions. These two types

of inputs have created the following fair value hierarchy:

IFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation
techniques
observable
or unobservable.
inputs reflect
market assets
data obtained
from independent
• Level 1 –areQuoted
prices
(unadjusted) Observable
in active markets
for identical
or liabilities.
This level
sources; unobservable inputs reflect the Bank’s market assumptions. These two types of inputs have created
includes listed equity securities and debt instruments on exchanges (for example, The Ghana Stock
the following fair value hierarchy:

Exchange).As at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012, the Bank did not hold any level 1

financial
Level 1 –assets
Quoted
prices liabilities.
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This level includes
and/or
listed equity securities and debt instruments on exchanges (for example, The Ghana Stock Exchange).As at 31
December
2013
and 31
December
2012, the
Bank
did not hold
anyLevel
level 1 financial
assets and/orfor
liabilities.
• Level 2 –
Inputs
other
than quoted
prices
included
within
that are observable
the asset

liability,
(that
is, asprices
prices)
or indirectly
(that 1is,that
derived
from prices).
This
level
orLevel
2 – either
Inputs directly
other than
quoted
included
within Level
are observable
for the
asset
or
includeseither
available
for sale
assetsorwhich
are Bank
Ghana’sfrom
securities
valued
by
prices).which
This are
level
includes
liability,
directly
(thatfinancial
is, as prices)
indirectly
(that of
is, derived
available
fortosale
financial
assets which
Bank of at
Ghana’s
securities which
are valued
by reference
to Bank
reference
Bank
or Ghana
marketarerates.As
31 December
2013 and
31 December
2012,
the
or
Ghana
rates.As
at 312December
31 December
2012, the Bank did not hold any level 2
Bank
didmarket
not hold
any level
financial 2013
assetsand
and/or
liabilities.
financial assets and/or liabilities.
#

• Level 3 – inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

 Level 3 – inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
(unobservable inputs). This level includes equity investments and debt instruments with significant
This level includes equity investments and debt instruments with significant unobservable components. As at
unobservable
components.
As at 312012,
December
2013
December
the Bank
not
31 December 2013
and 31 December
the Bank
didand
not 31
hold
any level 2012,
3 financial
assetsdid
and/or
hold
any
level
3
financial
assets
and/or
liabilities.
liabilities.

(b)Financial
Financial
instruments
not measured
at fair value
(b)
instruments
not measured
at fair value
The
summarises
the the
carrying
amounts
and fair
values
of thoseoffinancial
assets andassets
liabilities
Thefollowing
followingtable
table
summarises
carrying
amounts
and
fair values
those financial
and
not
presented
on
the
Bank’s
statement
of
financial
position
at
their
fair
value.
liabilities not presented on the Bank’s statement of financial position at their fair value.
Carrying value

Fair value

2013
Financial assets
Cash and balances with Central
Bank
Cash due from banks
Loans and advances to customers
Financial Instruments – Held to
maturity
Other assets
Total financial assets

Carrying
value

Fair value

2012

GH¢

GH¢

GH¢

GH¢

24,832,690

24,832,690

24,071,889

24,071,889

67,680,319

79,623,905

69,798,236

82,115,572

40,199,804

47,293,887

12,191,352

14,259

60,286,940

78,031,824

62,582,418

67,145,998

8,179,279

8,179,279

7,281,611

7,281,611

201,179,032

237,961,585

175,925,506

180,629,329

153,432,841

154,982,668

134,692,208

136,052,735

28,151,546

28,435,905

18,664,491

18,853,021

591,160

597,131

999,082

1,009,174

182,175,547

184,015,704

154,355,781

155,914,930

Financial liabilities
Due to customers
Other liabilities
Interest payable and unearned
discount
Total liabilities

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
40
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(a) Financial instruments not measured
at fair value (continued)

intention and ability to hold to maturity.
These are initially recognised at fair value
including direct and incremental transaction
costs and measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Expected cash flows are
discounted at current market rates to
determine fair value. using the effective
interest method, less any provision for
impairment.

Cash and bank balances with central
bank
The management assessed that cash and
bank balances with central bank approximate
their carrying amounts largely due to the
short-term nature.

Other assets (excluding prepayments)
Cash due from banking banks
The estimated fair value of other assets
excluding prepayments and stationery stocks
represents the discounted amount of
estimated future cash flows expected to be
received. The carrying amount approximates
their fair value.

Cash due from banking include inter-bank
placements. The carrying amount of floating
rate placements and overnight deposits is a
reasonable approximation of fair value. The
estimated fair value of fixed interest bearing
deposits is based on discounted cash flows
using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and
remaining maturity. The carrying amount
approximates their fair values.

Due to customers
The estimated fair value of deposits with no
stated maturity, which includes non-interest
bearing deposits, is the amount repayable on
demand. The estimated fair value of fixed
interest-bearing deposits not quoted in an
active market is based on discounted cash
flows using interest rates for new debts with
similar remaining maturity. The carrying
amount approximates their fair value.

Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances are net of charges for
impairment. The estimated fair value of
loans and advances represents the discounted
amount of estimated future cash flows
expected to be received. Expected cash flows
are discounted at current market rates to
determine fair value. The carrying amount
approximates their fair value.

Interest payable and other liabilities
The estimated fair value of interest payable
and other liabilities is based in discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market
interest rates for debts with similar risk and
remaining maturity. The carrying amount
approximates their fair value.

Financial Instruments – Held to maturity
Held-to-maturity investments are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities
that the Bank’s management has the positive

49

ARB Apex Bank Annual Report 2013

ARB APEX BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
TO THE FINANCIAL
NOTES
31 DECEMBER
2013 STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2013

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(b) Financial instruments by category
2013
Financial assets
Cash and balances with Central
Bank
Cash due from banks
Loans and advances to customers
Financial Instruments – Held to
maturity
Other assets
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Loans and
Receivables

Held to Maturity

Total Carrying
Amount

GH¢

GH¢

GH¢

24,832,690

-

24,832,690

67,680,319

-

67,680,319

40,199,804

-

40,199,804

-

60,286,940

60,286,940

8,179,279

-

8,179,279

201,179,032

60,286,940

201,179,032

Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss

Other financial liabilities
at amortised cost

Total

GH¢

GH¢

GH¢

Due to customers
Other liabilities
Interest payable and unearned
discount

-

134,692,208

134,692,208

-

18,664,491

18,664,491

-

999,082

999,082

Total liabilities

-

154,355,781

154,355,781
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Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(b) Financial instruments by category (continued)

2012
Financial assets
Cash and balances with Central
Bank
Cash due from banks
Loans and advances to customers
Financial Instruments – Held to
maturity
Other assets
Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Loans and
Receivables

Held to Maturity

Total Carrying
Amount

GH¢

GH¢

GH¢

24,071,889

-

24,071,889

69,798,236

-

69,798,236

12,191,352

-

12,191,352

-

62,582,418

62,582,418

7,281,611

-

7,281,611

113,343,088

62,582,418

175,925,506

Financial liabilities
at fair value
through profit or Other financial liabilities
loss
at amortised cost

Total

GH¢

GH¢

GH¢

Due to customers
Other liabilities
Interest payable and unearned
discount

-

153,432,841

153,432,841

-

28,151,546

28,151,546

-

591,160

591,160

Total liabilities

-

182,175,547

182,175,547
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d. Foreign exchange risk
The Bank operates wholly within Ghana and its assets and liabilities are carried in local currency. The Bank
maintains trade with correspondent banks and takes deposits and lends in foreign currencies. The Bank is
exposed to the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Bank's currency position and exposure are managed within the exposure guideline stipulated by the
Bank of Ghana. This position is reviewed on a daily basis by management.
The exchange rates used for translating the major foreign currency balances at the year-end were as follows:

US Dollar
GB Pound
EURO

2013

2012

GH¢
2.1616
3.5727
2.9863

GH¢
1.8846
3.0410
2.4851

Foreign exchange risk represents Appreciation/depreciation of the GH¢ against other currencies. The Foreign
exchange risks sensitivity analysis is based on the following assumptions:
%
Foreign exchange exposures represent net currency positions of all currencies other than Ghana Cedi
(GHc).
%
The currency risk sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that all net currency positions are highly
effective.
%
The base currency in which the Bank's business is transacted is Ghana Cedis (GH¢).
c. Exchange rate sensitivity analysis
2013
Change in
currency

Effect on profit

Effect on equity

USD

5%/-5%

14,810/(14,811)

14,810/(14,811)

EURO

5%/-5%

25,269/(25269)

25,269/(25269)

GBP

5%/-5%

51,582/(51,582)

51,582/(51,582)

Change in
currency

Effect on profit

Effect on equity

USD

5%/-5%

443,082/(443082)

443,082/(443082)

EURO

5%/-5%

13,794/(13794)

13,794/(13794)

GBP

5%/-5%

15,937/(15937)

15,937/(15937)

2012
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Foreign exchange risk
The table below summarizes the Bank's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk as at reporting date
(all figures are in Ghana Cedis.
Analysis of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency
2013

Cash
Bank balances

Dollar

Euro

Pounds

Total

GH¢

GH¢

GH¢

GH¢

3,891

4,061

214

8,167

2,174,381

185,731

329,908

2,690,020

2,178,272

189,792

330,122

2,698,187

22

-

-

22

8,350

-

-

8,350

19

-

-

19

2,021,411

-

-

2,021,411

2,029,802

-

-

2,029,802

148,470

189,792

330,122

668,385

Dollar

Euro

Pounds

Total

GH¢

GH¢

GH¢

25,429

3,379

-

28,808

7,790,678

112,950

108,986

8,012,614

7,816,107

116,329

108,986

8,041,422

19

-

-

19

-6320

-

-

(6,320)

1612

-

-

1,612

2,994,924

-

-

2,994,924

2,990,235

-

-

2,990,235

4,825,872

116,330

108,986

5,051,187

Other liabilities
MoneyGram cover
Western union cover
Vigo cover
Managed funds

Net on statement of financial
position
2012
Financial assets
Cash
Bank balances
Other liabilities
MoneyGram cover
Western union cover
Vigo cover
Managed funds
Net statement of financial
position
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i.

Interest rate risk

The Bank is exposed to the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
market interest rates. The maturities of asset and liabilities and the ability to replace at an acceptable cost,
interest-bearing liabilities as they mature, are important factors in assessing the Bank's exposure to changes
in interest rates and liquidity.
Interest rates on advances to customers and other risk assets are pegged to the Bank's base lending rate.
The base rate is adjusted from time to time to reflect the cost of funds.
The Assets and Liability Committee closely monitors the interest rate trends to minimize the potential
adverse impact of interest rate changes.
The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is
fundamental to the management of the Bank.
The interest rate risks sensitivity analysis is based on the following assumptions.
%
%
%
%
%

Changes in the market interest rates affect the interest income or expenses of variable interest
financial instruments.
Changes in market interest rates only affect interest income or expenses in relation to financial
instruments with fixed interest rates if these are recognized at their fair value.
The interest rate changes will have a significant effect on interest sensitive assets and liabilities and
hence simulation modelling is applied to net interest margins.
The interest rates of all maturities move by the same amount and, therefore, do not reflect the
potential impact on net interest income of some rates changing while others remain unchanged.
The projections make other assumptions including that all positions run to maturity.
Interest rate sensitivity analysis
2013
Increase/decrease in
basis point

Effect on profit

Effect on equity

GH¢

GH¢

5%/-5%

684,100/(684,100)

684,100/(684,100)

Increase/decrease in
basis points

Effect on profit

Effect on equity

5%/-5%

572,462/(572,462)

572,462/(572,462)

2012
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Net liquidity gap

Financial liabilities
Due to customers
Other liabilities
Interest payable and unearned discount

966,818
29,018,269

113,491,815

201,179,032

27,514,909

75,508,851
37,982,964

182,175,547
19,003,485

1,503,360

69,222,808
5,944,279
341,764

153,432,841
28,151,546
591,160

650,000
603,964
249,396

16,371,097

1,680,354

6,988,900

60,286,940

Financial Instruments – Held to maturity

8,075,063

10,000,000

-

> 3 months <
than 1 year
GH¢

15,914,843

40,199,804

Loans and advances to customers

57,680,319

24,832,690

Less than 3
months
GH¢

8,179,279

67,680,319

Cash due from banks

Other assets

24,832,690

Total
GH¢

Cash and balances with central bank

Financial assets

35a: As at 31 December 2013
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(10,967,836)

41,139,832

21,033,729
20,106,103
-

30,171,996

143,934

8,001,000

22,027,062

-

-

>1 year <3 years
GH¢

(35,526,552)

64,023,504

62,526,304
1,497,200
-

28,496,952

79,627

20,000,000

8,417,325

-

-

3 years and
over
GH¢
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Net liquidity gap

Liabilities
Due to customers
Other liabilities
Interest payable and unearned discount

Other assets

43,233,601

79,671,255

154,355,781
21,367,139

64,496,750
14,609,230
565,275

122,904,856

175,722,920
134,692,208
18,664,491
999,082

1,032,031

6,024,822

7,281,611

17,993,154

1,984,697

1,149,505
401,385
433,807

19,977,851

17,202,140

1,743,680

-

-

> 3 months < than
1 year
GH¢

19,645,975

62,582,418

Financial Instruments – Held to maturity

3,363,934

69,798,236

69,798,236
12,191,352

Cash due from banks

24,071,889

Less than 3
months
GH¢

24,071,889

Loans and advancesto customers

Cash and balances with central bank

Assets

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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35b: As at 31 December 2012
Total
GH¢
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11,077,194

21,289,824

20,444,603
845,221
-

32,367,018

145,937

25,734,303

6,486,778

-

-

>1 year <3 years
GH¢

(50,734,224)

51,410,005

48,601,350
2,808,655
-

675,781

78,821

-

596,960

-

-

3 years and over
GH¢
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36.

CAPITAL
The primary objectives of the Bank’s capital management are to ensure that the Bank complies with
externally imposed capital requirements by the Bank of Ghana and that the Bank maintains strong
credit ratings and healthy capital adequacy ratio in order to support its business and to maximize its
shareholders’ value.
The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in the
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities.
The Bank may adjust the amount of dividend payments to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
or issue capital securities. No changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes from the
previous years.
There were no material changes in the Bank’s management of capital during the period.
The table below summarises the composition of regulatory capital and the ratios of the Bank for the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012. During those two years, the Bank complied with all of the
externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject to.
2013
GH¢

2012
GH¢

Paid-up Capital
Disclosed Reserves

8,934,340
23,916,472

8,910,646
16,896,240

Net Tier 1 Capital

32,850,812

25,806,885

Adjusted asset base

98,084,811

57,084,064

33%

45%

Item

Adjusted Capital Base as percentage of
Adjusted Asset Base
37.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE
There have been no events after the reporting date requiring adjustment or disclosure in the financial
statement.
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PROXY FORM
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the ARB Apex Bank Limited to be held on Saturday, 26th April, 2014 at
the Conference Room of the ARB Apex Bank Limited, South Ridge, Accra at 10: 00 am prompt.
We………………………......................…………………being members of …………............................……………………
hereby appoint Dr./Hon./Mr./Mrs./Ms./Rev……………………….............................................……………………..
with a duly sealed proxy form to attend and vote for us and on our behalf at the Annual General Meeting
of the Bank to be held on 26th April, 2014.
Dated this…………………...................................………..day of………….....................................……………..2014.
……………………………………………………...……….
Signature (Authorised Signatory)
Name:…………………………………………….……….
Designation …………………………………………….
Company Seal/Stamp
…………………………………………………………..…..
Signature (Authorised Signatory)
Name:……………………………………………..………
Designation …………………………………………….

Company Seal/Stamp

Resolutions from the Board

For

1.

To receive the Chairman’s statement and the Managing
Director’s report for the year ended 31 December 2013.

2.

To consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 together
with the reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

3.

To authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration of
Auditors.

4.

To declare a dividend of GH¢0.1714 per share amounting to
GHS1,733,916 for the year 2013, representing 20% of net
profit.

5.

To fix the remuneration of Directors.

Against

Please indicate with an ‘X’ in the appropriate square how you wish your votes to be cast on the resolutions set out
above. Unless otherwise instructed the proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/her discretion.
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